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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of
Mashriq Insurance Company
Public Shareholding Company
Palestine

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al-Mashriq Insurance Company
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “The Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, consolidated statement of
income and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in owners’ equity
and  consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the group as of December 31, 2021, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of
the group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the group’s consolidated financial statements in Palestine, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were the most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
Al Mashreq Insurance
Building
Al-Nahda Area, Al Masyoun
Ramallah, P.O. Box 447
Palestine

Tel: +970 (0) 2 298 0048
Fax: +970 (0) 2 295 9153
www.deloitte.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Technical Provisions

As  at  December  31,  2021  the  Group  had
technical  reserves  of  USD  40,466,772  which
includes claims incurred but not reported
(IBNR) and other technical reserves.

The  Group  uses  a  range  of  actuarial
methodologies to estimate these claims. This
requires significant judgements to be made, for
example inflation rates, claims development
patterns and interpretations of regulatory
requirements.

The measurement of technical reserves is a key
judgement area for management given the
level of subjectivity inherent in estimating the
impact of claim events that have occurred for
which the ultimate outcome remains uncertain.

We have determined that this area is a key
audit matter due to the significance of the
amounts involved and of the level of significant
judgements applied by management in the
process for determination of gross outstanding
claims.

Refer  to  note  13  in  the  consolidated  financial
statements for further details relating to this
matter.

Our audit procedures included:

We evaluated the design and tested the
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
controls over management’s processes for claims
processing and payment, including controls over
the completeness and accuracy of the claim
estimates recorded.

We performed substantive tests on the amounts
recorded for a sample of claims notified and paid,
including comparing the outstanding claims
amount to appropriate source documentation to
evaluate the valuation of outstanding claims and
technical reserves.

Using our actuarial specialists, we assessed the
methodologies and assumptions used by
management against recognized actuarial
practices and industry standards to identify and
evaluate any anomalies.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of
data used by management in their calculation of
technical reserves.

We assessed the disclosures in the financial
statements relating to this matter against the
requirements of IFRSs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information consists of
information provided in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and
the auditor's report thereon. We expect that the annual report will be presented at a later date
of our report and do not include our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and other
information. We do not express any kind of assurance or conclusion.

In addition to the audit of the consolidated financial statements, it is our responsibility to read
the above information when it becomes available to us, assessing whether the other
information is not materially consistent with the consolidated financial statements or
information obtained through our audit or that other information includes substantial errors.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Groups
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA’s, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use  of  the  going  concern  basis  of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosure is inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Report on Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Group maintains accounting records in a duly organized manner in accordance with the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Raed Abu Eletham - Certified Public Accountant
License No. (109/2002)

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
Ramallah - Palestine
March 21, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2021

Notes December 31 December 31
2021 2020
USD USD

Assets
Non Current Assets
Property and Equipment 6 5,562,255 5,273,203
Right of Use Assets 17 136,513 188,498
Investment Property 7 12,188,917 14,169,370
Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income 8 4,736,246 3,164,384
Mandatory Deposits 9 250,000 250,000
Deferred Tax Assets 10 1,069,966 910,379
Cheques Under Collection Due After a Year 18-c 4,525,421 2,542,976
Total Non Current Assets 28,469,318 26,498,810

Current Assets
Accounts Receivable, Net 11 14,768,508 14,001,039
Insurance and Reinsurance Companies Receivables 12 295,637 398,038
Reinsurance Contract Asset 13 5,796,038 4,549,579
Financial Investments through Profit and Loss 14 2,464,797 954,021
Property Inventory 15 2,595,601 1,367,980
Other Debit Balances 16 199,710 179,913
Cheques Under Collection Due Within a Year 18-c 17,087,751 12,157,776
Deposits at Banks 18-b 2,960,259 2,794,549
Cash and Cash Equivalent 18-a 3,729,661 4,767,086
Total Current Assets 49,897,962 41,169,981

Total Assets 78,367,280 67,668,791

Owners' Equity and Liability

Owners' Equity
Share Capital 2 5,500,000 5,200,000
Statuary Reserve 11-4 1,203,424 1,115,833
Cumulative Change In Fair Value 19 2,751,846 1,561,512
Financial Statements Currency Translation Variance (952,772) (1,005,018)
Retained Earnings 3,271,494 2,913,174
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Parent Company 11,773,992 9,785,501
Non Controlling Interests 5,846,759 5,815,868
Total Equity 17,620,751 15,601,369

Non Current Liabilities
Provision for Employees End of Service Benefits 20 1,809,510 1,352,511
Bank Loans - Long Term 25 2,223,819 1,780,387
Lease Liability - Long Term 17 124,154 176,562
Total Non Current Liabilities 4,157,483 3,309,460

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 21 7,616,603 6,627,178
Insurance And Reinsurance Companies Payable 22 1,605,746 1,203,988
Other Credit Balances 23 1,861,888 1,764,734
Other Provisions 24 2,429,416 2,673,726
Insurance Contract Liability 13 40,466,772 34,362,829
Postdated Cheques Payables 1,533,018 1,112,135
Lease Liability - Short Term 17 17,568 16,968
Bank Loans - Short Term 25 1,058,035 996,404
Total Current Liabilities 56,589,046 48,757,962
Total Liabilities 60,746,529 52,067,422

Total Equity And Liability 78,367,280 67,668,791

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Notes December 31 December 31
2021 2020
USD USD

Gross Written Premium 27 39,844,510 30,450,163
Change in Unearned Premium Reserve 27 (2,616,361) 239,556
Earned Premium Revenue 37,228,149 30,689,719

Reinsurance Premium share 27 (2,843,742) (2,642,113)
Change in Reinsurance Share of Unearned Premium Reserve 27 252,487 (76,883)
Net Reinsurance Premium (2,591,255) (2,718,996)

Net Insurance Premium Earned 27 34,636,894 27,970,723

Gross Reinsurance Premium Commission Earned 27 287,202 261,206
Less: Commission Paid 27 (1,448,167) (1,202,128)
Net Insurance Premium Earned After Commission 33,475,929 27,029,801

Investment Income 367,253 267,522

Claims Incurred
Gross Claims Incurred (25,609,426) (19,259,421)
Reinsurance Share of Claims Incurred 1,231,482 406,925
Net Claims Incurred 27 (24,377,944) (18,852,496)

Net Insurance Activity Before Administrative Expenses 27 9,465,238 8,444,827
General and Administrative Expenses Allocated to Insurance Activities 28 (7,753,338) (5,880,468)
Net Insurance Activity After Administrative Expenses 27 1,711,900 2,564,359

Bank interest and Charges (44,039) (33,773)
(Loss) on Currency Exchange Revaluation (292,650) (151,560)
Expected credit loss 11 (166,285) (434,593)
(Loss) Gain from Sale of Property and Equipment (3,644) 1,064

General and Administrative Expenses not Allocated to Insurance Activities 28 (1,467,933) (1,238,133)

Amortization of Right of Use Assets 17 (56,474) (56,474)
Interest expense on lease liability (9,967) (2,606)
Other Income not allocated to Insurance Activities 29 867,774 191,684
Gain from Revaluation of Investment Property 7 333,072 1,109,794
Gain (loss) From Revaluation of Investments Through Profit and Loss 474,536 (160,841)
(Loss) on Sale of Investment Property (3,446) -
Net Profit Before Taxes 1,342,844 1,788,921
Deferred Tax Benefits 10 159,587 173,848
Value Added Tax and Income Tax 24 (433,921) (710,298)
Net Profit After Taxes 1,068,510 1,252,471

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 875,911 1,031,052
Non Controlling Interests 3-4 192,599 221,419

1,068,510 1,252,471

Earnings Per Share for Parent Company 31 0.16 0.19

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Notes December 31 December 31
2021 2020
USD USD

Net Profit for the Period 1,068,510 1,252,471

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be Re-classified Subsequently to Profit or Loss
Change in Fair Value 19 1,190,334 16,470

1,190,334 16,470

Items that may be Re-classified Subsequently to Profit or Loss
Financial Statements Currency Translation Variance 51,226 (524,004)

51,226 (524,004)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Period 1,241,560 (507,534)
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Period 2,310,070 744,937

Attributable To:
Owners of the Company 2,118,491 523,518
Non Controlling Interests 191,579 221,419

2,310,070 744,937

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Share Capital
Statuary
Reserve

Cumulative
Change in
Fair Value

Currency
Translation

Variance
Retained

Earnings *

  Equity
  Attributable to
  Owners of the

Company

  Equity Attributable
 -to the non

controlling interest Total Equity
USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Balance as of January 1, 2021 5,200,000 1,115,833 1,561,512 (1,005,018) 2,913,174 9,785,501 5,815,868 15,601,369
Profit for the Period - - - - 875,911 875,911 192,599 1,068,510
Other Comprehensive Income - - 1,190,334 52,246 - 1,242,580 (1,020) 1,241,560
Total Other Comprehensive For The Period - - 1,190,334 52,246 875,911 2,118,491 191,579 2,310,070

Dividends Paid (Note 26) - - - - (130,000) (130,000) - (130,000)
Increase in Capital (Note 2) 300,000 - - - (300,000) - - -
Change in Non Controlling Interest - - - - - - (160,688) (160,688)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 87,591 - - (87,591) - - -
Balance as of December 31, 2021 5,500,000 1,203,424 2,751,846 (952,772) 3,271,494 11,773,992 5,846,759 17,620,751

Balance as of January 1, 2020 5,200,000 1,012,728 1,545,042 (481,014) 2,115,227 9,391,983 5,665,382 15,057,365
Profit for the Period - - - - 1,031,052 1,031,052 221,419 1,252,471
Other Comprehensive Income - - 16,470 (524,004) - (507,534) - (507,534)
Total Other Comprehensive For The Period - - 16,470 (524,004) 1,031,052 523,518 221,419 744,937

Dividends Paid (Note 26) - - - - (130,000) (130,000) - (130,000)
Change in Non Controlling Interest - - - - - - (70,933) (70,933)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 103,105 - - (103,105) - - -

Balance as of December 31, 2020 5,200,000 1,115,833 1,561,512 (1,005,018) 2,913,174 9,785,501 5,815,868 15,601,369

* Retained earnings balance includes an amount of USD 794,127 held against the financial impact that may result from the application of IFRS 17 on unearned premium reserve.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Al Mashreq Insurance Company and its subsidiaries
Public Shareholding Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2021

7. Investment Property
2021 2020
USD USD

Plots of land 11,604,769 13,327,833
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Share Capital
Statuary
Reserve

Cumulative
Change in
Fair Value

Currency
Translation

Variance
Retained

Earnings *
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Company
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USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD
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Other Comprehensive Income - - 1,190,334 52,246 - 1,242,580 (1,020) 1,241,560
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Dividends Paid (Note 26) - - - - (130,000) (130,000) - (130,000)
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Change in Non Controlling Interest - - - - - - (160,688) (160,688)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 87,591 - - (87,591) - - -
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Dividends Paid (Note 26) - - - - (130,000) (130,000) - (130,000)
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Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 103,105 - - (103,105) - - -

Balance as of December 31, 2020 5,200,000 1,115,833 1,561,512 (1,005,018) 2,913,174 9,785,501 5,815,868 15,601,369

* Retained earnings balance includes an amount of USD 794,127 held against the financial impact that may result from the application of IFRS 17 on unearned premium reserve.
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Al Mashreq Insurance Company and its subsidiaries
Public Shareholding Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2021

7. Investment Property
2021 2020
USD USD

Plots of land 11,604,769 13,327,833



 Al Mashreq Insurance Company and its Subsidiaries
 Public Shareholding Company

10

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

December 31 December 31
2021 2020
USD USD

Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Tax             1,342,844             1,788,921
Adjustments:
(Increase) Decrease in Reinsurance Contract Asset           (1,246,459)                 29,671
Increase in Insurance Contract Liability             6,103,943             3,995,445
Depreciation on Property and Equipment                300,902                252,435
Amortization on Right of Use                 56,474                 56,474
Expected Credit Loss on Accounts Receivables and Cheques                166,285                434,593
Foreign Currency Difference                137,823                233,885
Loss on Sale of Investments through Profit and Loss                   4,939                 33,298
(Gain) Loss from Revaluation of Investments through Profit and Loss              (474,536)                160,841
(Gain) from Revaluation of Investment Property              (333,072)           (1,109,794)
Loss on Sale of Investment Property                   3,446                        -
Loss (Gain) From Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment )460,1(                  446,3                  
Provision for End of Service Indemnity                544,235                262,848
Cash Flow Before Changes in Operating Assets and
Liabilities

6,610,468 6,137,553

(Increase) in Cheques Under Collection           (6,912,420)           (2,199,736)
(Increase) in Accounts Receivables           (1,012,559)           (5,005,493)
Decrease (Increase) in the Insurance and Reinsurance
Companies Receivables

)760,5(                  104,201               

(Increase) in Property Inventory           (1,227,621)              (181,255)
Decrease in Investment Property             2,310,079             3,100,661
(Increase) in Other Debit Balances                (19,797)                (29,240)
Increase in Accounts Payable                989,425                656,053
Increase in Insurance and Reinsurance Companies Payable                401,758                 99,631
Increase in Other Credit Balances                 97,154                586,398
(Decrease) Increase in Other Provisions              (374,770)                327,249
Cash Generated From Operating Activities 964,118 3,486,754
Employee’s End of Service Benefits Paid              (147,274)              (255,534)
Income Tax Paid              (303,461)              (273,747)
Net Cash Generated From Operating Activities 513,383 2,957,473
Investing Activities
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment                 44,116                 19,967
Proceed From Sale of Financial Assets                 14,014                260,041
Purchase of Financial Assets           (1,436,721)           (1,228,836)
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment              (637,714)              (369,500)
Change in Non Controlling Interest              (160,688)                (70,933)
Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities (2,176,993) (1,389,261)
Financing Activities
Increase (Decrease) Increase in Bank Loans )841,97(                360,505               
Dividends Paid              (130,000)              (130,000)
Paid From Lease Liability                (56,297)                (56,124)
(Increase) Decrease in Deposits at Banks Due Within Three Months              (883,163)             1,680,375
Increase in Postdated Cheques Payables                420,883                395,356
Net Cash (Used in) Generated From Financing Activities (143,514) 1,810,459

(1,807,124) 3,378,671
Financial Statements Currency Translation Variance 52,246 (524,004)

7,524,325 4,669,658
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the Period 5,769,447 7,524,325

Represent The Following:
Cash And Cash Equivalent             3,729,661             4,767,086
Bank Deposits Due Within Three Months             2,039,786             2,757,239
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the Period 5,769,447 7,524,325

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the Beginning of the Period
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1. General Information

- Al Mashreq Insurance Company was established in 1992 under the provisions of Companies Law No.
(12) of 1964 and it is registered as a public limited company under No. (562600361), and its main
headquarters is in Ramallah.

- The company carries out all insurance business in accordance with laws and regulations framework
related to insurance business applicable in Palestine.

- The company carries out its activities through its branches and offices in the West Bank, the number
of branches and offices as of December 31, 2021 was (23) and (20) as of December 31, 2020 in addition
to agents whose average number was (25) agents as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

- The number of the company's employees reached (209) employees as of December 31, 2021, and
(178) employees as of December 31, 2020.

- The consolidated financial statements of the group were approved by the Executive Committee of the
Board of Directors on February 22, 2022, provided that they are presented for approval by the General
Assembly at its next annual meeting.

- The consolidated financial statements of the group were approved by the Palestinian Capital Market
Authority / General Insurance Administration on March 21, 2022.

2. Capital

The company's fully paid capital as of December 31, 2021 amounted to 5,500,000 USD distributed over
5,500,000 shares at 1 USD per share, compared to 5,200,000 USD distributed over 5,200,000 shares
at 1 USD per share as of December 31, 2020, during the year 2021, 300,000 free shares were distributed
to shareholders at 1 USD per share, bringing the total capital to 5,500,000 US dollars as of the date of
the financial statements.

3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2021, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The application of these
revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years
but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16— In
the current year, the Group adopted the Phase 2 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16. Adopting these amendments enables
the Group to reflect the effects of transitioning from interbank offered rates (IBOR) to alternative
benchmark interest rates (also referred to as ‘risk free rates’ or RFRs) without giving rise to
accounting impacts that would not provide useful information to users of financial statements. The
Group has not restated the prior period. Instead, the amendments have been applied retrospectively
with any adjustments recognized in the appropriate components of equity as at 1 January 2021.
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) — In the current financial year, the
Group has applied the amendment to IFRS 16 (as issued by the Board in May 2021) in advance of
its effective date
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3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) (continued)

3.1 New and revised IFRS standards and interpretations but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

3.1.1 IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.
IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2023, with comparative figures required. Early application is permitted, provided that
the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS
17. Retrospective application is required.

3.1.2 Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and IAS 28 ‘Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures’ (2011) deals with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
(effective date deferred indefinitely, early adoption permitted).

3.1.3 IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ – Amendments on Classifications.
Effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

3.1.4 Amendments relating IAS 16, IAS 37, IFRS 3 and some annual improvements on IFRS
1, IFRS 9, IAS 41 and IFRS 16 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022).

3.1.5 IFRS 4 relating to amendments regarding the expiry date of the deferral approach.
The fixed expiry date for the temporary exemption in IFRS 4 from applying IFRS 9 is
now January 1, 2023.

3.1.6 Amendments to IFRS 9 that clarifies that for the purpose of performing the ‘’10 per
cent test’ for derecognition of financial liabilities in determining those fees paid net of
fees received, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022, with earlier application permitted.

3.1.7 Amendments regarding Disclosure of Accounting policies (IAS 1 and IFRS practice
statement 2), amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’— Definition of Accounting Estimates and Amendments to IAS
12 ‘Income Taxes’—Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023).

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable and
adoption of these new standards, interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS 17,
mentioned below, may have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 17 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning January 1, 2023. The application of IFRS 17 may
have significant impact on amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in respect of its insurance contracts. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effects of the application of this standard until the Group performs
a detailed review.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

4.1 Statement of compliance

The  attached  consolidated  financial  statements  have  been  prepared  in  accordance  with
International Financial Reporting Standards, requirements of applicable local laws, Insurance Law
No. (20) of 2005, and instructions issued by the Capital Market Authority / General Insurance
Administration.

4.2 Basis of preparing the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost. except for
property investments and financial assets that were measured at fair value. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these financial statements is determined on such basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realizable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level
1,2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity,
with a distinction based on expectations regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months
after the reporting date (current) and more than twelve months after the reporting date (non-
current), as this has been presented in the notes. The US dollar is the presentation currency for
the consolidated financial statements.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.3 Basis of consolidation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Mashreq Insurance
Company, a public shareholding company, and the financial statements of Aqariya Trading
Investment Company and Pal Med Service for Medical Insurance Management in which the
company has the right of control (its subsidiaries). (together referred to as the “Group”).

The Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

Power over the investee;
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over
the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;
potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to
be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.3 Basis of consolidation of financial statements (continued)

The following are the details of the subsidiaries as at December 31, 2021:

* During the year 2021, there was an increase in the percentage of ownership in Aqariya Trading
Investment Company, whereby Mashreq Company purchased an additional 222,091 shares at a
cost of USD 160,689 with an average price of 0.72 for a total number of shares of 4,824,150 as
of December 31, 2021, which led to an increase in the total ownership percentage from 59% in
the year 2020 to 62% in the year 2021.

The  following  is  a  summary  of  the  statement  of  financial  position  of  the  subsidiaries  as  of
December 31, 2021:

The following is a summary of the income statement for the subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2021:

Company name
Record
number

Ownership
%

Authorized
Capital
(USD)

Paid
Capital
(USD) Main activity

Aqariya Trading
Investment
Company *

562600734 62% 7,757,405 7,757,405 Real estate
investments and
trading

PAL Med Service
Company

562563973 99% 40,000 40,000 Management of
medical expenses
and insurance
services

Aqariya Trading
Investment

Company

PAL Med
Service

Company
USD USD

Current Assets 6,904,130 24,348
Non-Current Assets 9,142,800 69,737
Current Liabilities 3,804,007 30,407
Non-Current Liabilities 2,317,702 18,446
Total Equity 9,925,221 45,232
Non-Controlling Interests 5,748,177 912

Aqariya Trading
Investment

Company

PAL Med
Service

Company
USD USD

Operating and other income 847,107 269,401
General and administrative expenses 634,638 166,606
Currency Difference Profits 30,979 551
profit for the year 243,448 103,346
Attributable to Owners of the Company 151,376 102,313
Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests 92,072 1,033
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.4 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized
at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period' (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent
consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held interests
(including joint operations) in the acquired entity are remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognized in other
comprehensive  income  are  reclassified  to  profit  or  loss,  where  such  treatment  would  be
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognized as of that date.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.5 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Group entities, transactions in currencies other than
the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.
Exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks.
Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group's assets and
liabilities are presented in US dollars based on the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
consolidated financial statements. Income and expenses are retranslated on the basis of the
average exchange rates prevailing during the year, and the exchange rate differences resulting
from the translation of these items into US dollars are included in the consolidated statement of
income.

The exchange rates against the new shekel as at the date of the consolidated financial statements
were as follows:

December
31,2021

December
31,2020

(%)
change

USD USD
     Israeli Shekel 0.322 0.310 3.9
     Jordanian Dinar 1.413 1.413 0
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.6 Revenue recognition and recording of expenses

Revenue from insurance contracts

Revenue from insurance contracts is measured based on the recognition of revenue specified in
insurance contracts and included in these notes to the consolidated financial statements (note 4-
7).

Costs of acquiring insurance policies

Acquisition costs represent the costs incurred by the Group in exchange for selling, subscribing
or initiating new insurance contracts. Acquisition costs are recorded in the consolidated statement
of income.

Commissions and other costs

All commissions and other costs for obtaining new or renewed insurance policies are recorded in
the consolidated income statement in the year of their occurrence, and other expenses are
recognized according to the accrual principle.

Commission income

Commission income is recognized when the reinsurance policy is issued based on terms and
percentages agreed upon with the reinsurance companies.

interest income

Interest on deposits with banks is accrued on an accrual basis based on the periods due, principal
amounts and the interest rate earned.

Bank interest and commission fees

Interest and bank commissions for loans and debit current accounts are recorded within the
financing expenses in the consolidated income statement and according to the accrual principle.

stock dividends

Dividends are recognized when the shareholders have the right to receive payments for the
dividends when they are approved by the general assembly of the shareholders of the investee
company.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses are distributed among the various insurance branches as
follows:

A- 10% is charged directly to the consolidated income statement.

B - 90% is charged to insurance branches in proportion to the basic premiums for each branch
attributed to the total basic premiums.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.7 Insurance contracts

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the
policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder are classified as insurance contracts.
Insurance risk is significant if an insured event could cause the Group to pay significant additional
benefits due to happening of the insured event compared to its non-happening.

Premiums arising from insurance contracts are recorded as revenue (earned premiums) on the
basis of the time periods due. Insurance premiums written through insurance contracts and
related to risks that still exist as at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position
are recorded within the liabilities as unearned insurance premiums. Insurance premiums are
shown in profit and loss before commissions are deducted.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses incurred are charged to profit and loss based on the
expected obligation to compensate the insurance contract holders or third parties damaged by
the contract holders.

Reinsurance contracts

Contracts with reinsurance companies under which the Group is compensated for losses arising
from one or more insurance contracts issued by the Group that comply with the classification
requirements for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts. Contracts entered
into by the Group with other insurance parties are included in insurance contracts. The benefits
arising from the Group's entry into entered into reinsurance contracts are treated as reinsurance
assets. The Group periodically evaluates its reinsurance assets. In the event that there is an
indication of losses in the reinsurance assets, the group reduces the carrying amount of the
reinsurance assets to the recoverable value and the resulting impairment losses are included in
the consolidated statement of income. The amounts required from or to reinsurers are measured
on an ongoing basis, with the value related to the reinsurance contracts and according to the
terms of each of those contracts separately. Amounts due to reinsurers mainly represent
premiums payable on reinsurance contracts and are recognized as an expense when due.

The Group also accepts reinsurance risks in the normal course of business of insurance contracts
as and when applicable. Premiums and claims for reinsurance accepted as income or expense are
recognized in the same way as when reinsurance is considered as direct business, taking into
account the classification of the reinsurance business. Reinsurance obligations represent the
balances owed to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent
with the related reinsurance contracts.

Reinsurance assets and liabilities are derecognized upon cancellation or expiry of contractual
rights, or upon transfer of the contract to another party.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.8 Reinsurance Contract Liability

Outstanding Claims Reserve

Insurance contracts reserve in respect of outstanding claims are created for all reported and unpaid
claims up to the date of the Financial Statements, as well as for claims incurred but not reported as at
that date

Insurance contract Liabilities related to unpaid claims are recognized when contracts are made, and
premiums are charged as of the balance sheet date. These obligations are known as outstanding claims
reserve and are based on the estimated final cost of all claims that occurred and were not paid as of
the date of the Statement of Financial Position, after deducting the expected value of the wreckage
and the amounts expected to be recovered as well as the expected to remain. There may be delays in
the reporting and payment of some types of claims, therefore the final cost of the claims is not highly
reliable at the balance sheet date. The obligation value is not discounted to meet its present value.
The obligation is derecognized upon its expiration, nullity, or cancellation

Reserves represent management's best estimate of the contingent liability as of the date of the
Financial Statements. Liabilities are estimated for unpaid reported claims using assessment inputs for
individual cases reported to the Group. Management's estimates of outstanding and unreported claims
are based on the frequency of  past  claims settlement of  IBNR claims using the actuarial  valuation
method and as instructed and approved by the Palestinian Capital Market Authority. As at the date of
the financial statements, the estimate of previous claims is reassessed to ensure the adequacy of the
provision by the Group's actuary and changes are made to this provision.

Unearned premium reserve
Unearned insurance premiums included in insurance contract liabilities represent the estimated portion
of the total written premiums relating to insurance periods subsequent to the date of the consolidated
financial statements. Unearned premiums are estimated based on the number of days remaining from
each insurance policy after the date of the consolidated financial statements. The unearned premiums
estimated according to the above method cover the minimum required for the unearned premiums
reserve. The unearned premium reserve takes into account the estimated acquisition costs incurred
by the Group to obtain insurance policies to be amortized over the life of the policy.
The reinsurance share of the above suspended claims including claims incurred but not reported, as
well as the reinsurance share of unearned premiums are classified as reinsurance assets in the
consolidated financial statements.

Claims Settlement Expenses Reserve
Represents expenses related to the settlement of accident files incurred and unpaid. Expenses usually
include fees for investigators, attorneys, experts, and others.

Wreckage compensation and concession
The expected return from debris and assignment compensation is taken into account when measuring
the liability to meet the claims and is deducted from the outstanding claims reserve as at the date of
the consolidated financial statements. Certain insurance contracts allow the Group to sell recovered
accident wrecks “cars written off” and repossessed property in exchange for claims payments. The
Group also has the right to recourse to third parties causing the accidents to compensate for the claims
paid. The recoverable amount represents the reasonable value obtained from the sale of vehicle
wreckage or property and is estimated based on the experience of damage assessors working in the
group or the value expected to be collected from third parties after referring to them.

Acquisition costs
Commissions and costs for securing new insurance contracts and renewing existing insurance contracts
vary from contract to contract as they are recognized as expenses when incurred.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.9 Provision for employee benefits

• Provision for employees end of service benefits

A provision is calculated to meet the legal and contractual obligations related to the employees’
end of service for the employees’ accumulated service period according to Labor Law No. (7) of
2000 at the rate of one month’s salary for each year of service based on the last salary received
by  the  employee  during  the  year.  The  amounts  to  be  deducted  annually  are  recorded  in  the
consolidated income statement, and the value of the provision is reduced by the amounts paid to
employees at the end of their services or their leaving work.

• Provident fund

The group contributes to the provident fund for the employees of Al-Mashreq Insurance Company
in accordance with the special system of the fund in the company, where the group contributes
5% of the basic salary, and the employees of the group contribute the same percentage, and thus
the group’s obligations to this fund are limited to the contribution percentage mentioned above
and this contribution is included in the Consolidated income statement where the contributions
are transferred on a monthly basis to the management committee of the provident fund.

4.10 Palestinian Road Accident Victims Compensation Fund Provision and Palestinian
Capital Market Authority Provision

The Palestinian Capital Market Authority’s provision is calculated at 3% and the Palestinian Fund’s
provision for compensation for road accident victims is calculated at 15% of the basic premiums
for mandatory vehicle insurance according to the fee system No. (4) of 2007 issued in accordance
with the provisions of the Palestinian Capital Market Authority Law No. (13) of 2004 and the
instructions of General Department of Insurance.

4.11 Reserves

Statutory Reserve

The compulsory reserve is formed by deducting 10% of the profit for the year until the balance
of this reserve reaches a quarter of the paid-up capital, and it may be increased to reach 100%
of the paid-up capital, in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Law No. (12) of
1964 and its amendments. This reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

Optional reserves

The Group has the right to deduct a percentage of its net annual profits at the rate of 10% for
the voluntary reserve. According to the law, the total amounts deducted in the name of the
voluntary reserve may not exceed half of the capital. The voluntary reserve is disposed of as
determined by the Group's Board of Directors.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.12 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are presented at historical cost and are depreciated on a straight-
line basis among the expected useful in annual average varies from 10% to 25%, details of these
percentages are as follows:

6%-20%Furniture and Fixtures
15%Computers Equipment
20%Motor Vehicles
6%-10%Decorations and Improvements
2%Buildings

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

The Group has adopted the fair value principle in recording lands and real estate and is recognized
at fair value upon acquisition. They are re-valued at fair value at the date of the consolidated
financial statements based on the average estimate of the reports of accredited evaluators, and
the differences in fair value are recorded in calculating the cumulative change in the fair value of
lands within equity.

4.13 Property Inventory

They are the properties and investments that the group has purchased or created with the aim
of selling them through the group's normal activities and not for the purpose of leasing or keeping
them for the purpose of benefiting from the increase in their value in the future. It is shown at
cost or refund value, whichever is lower. The cost includes amounts paid for the rights to own
real estate, amounts paid to contractors and engineers for construction and amounts paid for
preparing these properties from legal fees, property taxes and other indirect expenses.

The value of the real estate inventory recognized in the consolidated income statement is recorded
upon exclusion by determining the value of the actual costs recorded on the properties sold in
addition to any other relatively specific costs based on the level of completion and with the help
of engineering reports.

Upon completion of the projects in progress so that they are ready for sale, they are transferred
to the real estate stock where it is proven as real estate stock at the actual cost recorded in the
records.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.14 Investment property

They are investments held with the aim of benefiting from the increase in their market value over
time or obtaining rental income from them, and they appear at their fair value as on the date of
the consolidated financial statements.

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise

An  investment  property  is  derecognized  upon  disposal  or  when  the  investment  property  is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in consolidated profit
or loss in the period in which the property is derecognized.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when a change in use is evidenced at
the end of the owner's use period at the commencement of an operating lease to another party.
For transfers made from investments in owner-occupied property, the considered cost for
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use.

investment properties are revalued according to the market price based on the average price of
the reports of accredited evaluators, and the difference in the market value from the book value
is recorded in the investment revaluation profit in the consolidated income statement.

4.15 Impairment of Non-Monetary Assets

On the date of the consolidated financial statements, the Group reviews the present value of
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication of a decrease in the carrying value
of those assets, and if such indication exists, the recoverable value of the assets is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the loss resulting from the decline in value (if any). If it is difficult
to estimate the recoverable amount of the asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
value of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When there are reasonable bases
for distribution, the assets are distributed to the cash-generating units individually, and below
that, they are distributed to the smallest company of the cash-generating units based on
reasonable and identifiable bases

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of sale and realizable value in use

If the estimated recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is charged directly
to the statement of profit or loss, unless the asset has been revalued, in that case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease

If the impairment loss is subsequently recovered, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
until it reaches the estimated recoverable value, provided that the increase is not higher than the
carrying amount had there been no impairment in the asset value in previous years. The recovery
of the impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset has been
revalued, in which case the recovery of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.16 Financial Assets

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, upon
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value are recognized through consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial Assets Classification

The Group's financial assets include cash and bank balances, accounts receivable, checks under
collection and other debit balances. The classification of financial assets in the aforementioned
form is based on the nature and purpose of acquiring those financial assets and is measured when
recognized

Investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through the consolidated income statement represent investments
in corporate stocks and bonds for trading purposes, and the objective of keeping them is to
achieve profits from short-term market price fluctuations or trading profit margin.

Financial assets are recognized through the consolidated statement of profit or loss at fair value
at purchase (acquisition expenses are charged to the consolidated income statement upon
purchase) and subsequently re-evaluated at fair value. The change in fair value appears in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, including the change in fair value resulting from
differences in transferring items Non-monetary assets in foreign currencies, and in the event of
selling these assets or part of them, the resulting profits or losses are taken into the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Dividends or interest earned are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investments in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investments in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income represent
investments in shares of companies traded in the financial markets and have market prices that
represent their fair value

Financial assets are recognized through the consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income at fair value upon purchase and subsequently revalued at fair value, and the change in
fair value appears in the statement of other comprehensive income, including the change in fair
value resulting from exchange differences of non-monetary assets in foreign currencies, and in
the event of selling these assets or a part thereof, the resulting gain or loss is presented into
consolidated statement of profit or loss

Dividends are presented into the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.16 Financial Assets (continued)

Impairment in the value of financial assets
The Group recognizes allowances for expected credit losses on financial instruments measured at
amortized cost, trade receivables, insurance companies and reinsurers. Provisions for expected
credit losses are reviewed periodically in subsequent periods to reflect the change in credit risk
since the initial recognition of the financial asset.

The Group always calculates the expected credit loss over the life of trade receivables, receivables
from insurance companies and reinsurers. The expected credit loss of these financial assets is
also estimated based on the historical information of credit losses according to the records of the
group, and it is adjusted after taking into account several factors related to the debtor parties,
the existing economic situation and evaluating the current economic situation and the expected
economic situation as on the date of preparing the consolidated financial statements taking into
account Consider the present value of cash at that time where necessary.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial assets expire or when the financial assets are transferred, including all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets to another party. If the Group has not fully transferred
the financial assets or has not transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets and continues to control those financial assets that have been transferred to another party,
the Group recognizes the remaining interest in the financial assets and any obligations it has to
pay. If the Group does not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets,
the Group continues to recognize the financial assets along with a secured loan against the
proceeds received.

In the event that financial assets measured at amortized cost or measured at fair value through
profit or loss are disposed of, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets and the
sum of the amounts received and not received in exchange is recognized in profit or loss.

In the event that financial assets classified at fair value through other comprehensive income are
disposed of, the profit or loss that was previously recognized in the account of cumulative changes
in the fair value of financial investments is not reclassified to the consolidated statement of income
but is reclassified under the statement of changes in consolidated equity.

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and deposits with banks with maturities of
three months or less.

Insurance and reinsurance companies’ receivables
Insurance receivables consist of agents, brokers, insurance contract holders and reinsurance
companies and are measured at fair value. The allocation for expected credit losses appears in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss when there is doubt that these receivables will not be
collected.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.17 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the basis and substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definition of the financial liability and any equity instrument.

Owners' equity
An equity instrument is any contract that proves its owner's right to the group's remaining assets
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the
amounts received after deducting direct issuance expenses.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value after deducting transaction costs, except
for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss that are initially measured at fair value.
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method or at fair value through profit or loss. The Group has no financial liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

Murabaha financing
Murabaha financing from banks is recorded in the records with the total value of the financing
and the due Murabaha according to the accrual principle.

Insurance payables
Insurance payables are stated at fair value.

Provisions
Provisions are taken when there is a present obligation against a past event, which is likely to
result in an outflow of cash to pay economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Provisions are calculated according to the best estimates of future expenditures to settle
obligations  as  at  the  date  of  the  consolidated  financial  statements,  taking  into  account  any
unforeseen risks and events related to the obligation. The effect of the time value of money is
material.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle the obligation are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the amounts receivable are recorded as an asset if it is virtually
certain that the payments will be collected and the amounts receivable are reliably measurable.

4.18 Operating lease contracts

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease at inception of the contract. The Group
recognizes right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities in respect of all lease
arrangements in which the lessee is, except for short-term leases (defined as leases of 12 months
or less) and leases of low-value assets (such as tablets, personal computers, things small office
furniture and telephones). For these contracts, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that have not
been paid at the commencement date of the lease, discounted using the rate implicit in the lease.
If this rate cannot be easily determined, the incremental borrowing rate is used.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.18 Operating lease contracts (continued)

The lease payments included in the lease liability measurement include:

• Fixed lease payments (essentially including fixed payments), less lease incentives
receivable;

• variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the start date of the contract;

• the amount expected to be paid by the lessee under the residual value guarantees;
• the exercise price of the options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the

options; And the
• Payment of termination penalties, if the lease agreement reflects the exercise of the

option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to
reflect the interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

A lease liability is remeasured (and a corresponding adjustment is made to the related right-of-
use assets) when:

• The lease term is changed if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that
causes a change in the assessment of the exercise of the purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the discounted adjusted lease payments.

• Lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected
payments under the guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is re-
measured by discounting the adjusted lease payments using an unchanged discount rate
(unless the lease payments change due to the change in the interest rate floating rate,
in which case the revised discount rate is used).

The lease is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is re-measured based on the term of the modified lease by discounting the
modified lease payments using the revised discount rate at the actual rate at the modification
date.
The Group has not made any such adjustments during the periods presented.

Right-of-use assets include the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, and lease
payments made on or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any
initial direct costs. It is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

When the Group incurs an obligation for the costs of dismantling and removing a leased asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
under the terms of the lease, a provision is recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 37
to the extent that it relates to the costs of the right-of-use assets. Costs in the relevant right-of-
use assets, unless those costs are incurred to produce the goods.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Operating lease contracts (continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or the useful life of the asset (whichever
is shorter). If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right of use,
and reflects that the Group expects to exercise the purchase option, then the value of the related
right of use is amortized over the asset's useful life. Depreciation begins on the start date of the
lease.

Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group applies International Accounting Standard No. (36) to determine whether the right of
use has been impaired and to account for any impairment losses.

Variable leases that are not dependent on an index or rate are not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. The related payments are recognized as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition giving rise to those payments occurs and is included in
a separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly related to the acquisition, construction or production of assets
that qualify for capitalization, and that require a long period of time to become ready for use or
sale, are capitalized, as they are added to the cost of those assets until those assets are largely
ready for use or sale.

Temporary investment income earned on specific loans as they are expended to acquire the assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss for the period when incurred.

4.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Group's consolidated
financial statements when such dividends are approved and approved by the shareholders.

4.21 taxes

The current tax is calculated based on the taxable profit for the year. The taxable profit differs
from the profit shown in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, as it does not include items
of income and expenses that are subject to tax or deductible in other years, and it also does not
include items that have never been subject to tax or withholding.

Allocating income tax on profits is made on an annual basis based on Income Tax Law No. (8) of
2011.

The allocation of the added excise tax on profits is made according to the added excise system in
force in Palestine. As for the added excise tax on salaries, it is shown in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.22 Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are calculated from the timing differences arising for some items of expenses
that are not subject to tax when recorded, but are subject to an allowable deduction in subsequent
years, in accordance with International Accounting Standard No. (12).

4.23 Current and deferred tax for the year

The current and deferred tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, unless
it is related to items included directly in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the current and deferred tax is also recognized in items
of other comprehensive income or directly in equity on the straight. When current and deferred
tax arise from the initial accounting for a business combination, the effect of the taxes is included
in the accounting at the time of the business combination.

4.24 Sectors and Geographical Information

The business sector represents a group of assets and operations that jointly provide products or
services subject to risks and returns different from those related to other business sectors.
Segment information is included in Note No. (27).

For administrative purposes, the group’s business is organized according to the operational
insurance sectors, which consist of the automobile insurance sector, the general accident
insurance sector, the engineering insurance sector, the workers’ insurance sector, the civil liability
insurance sector, the health insurance sector, the fire insurance sector, and the marine insurance
sector. Investments comprise of investments and cash management for the group's own
accounts. These segments are the basis on which the Group prepares its segment reporting.

The group operates in Palestine and does not operate in any other geographical areas.

5. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation of Uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statements and the application of accounting policies
requires the management of the group to make assumptions and estimates that affect the
amounts of some assets and liabilities and the disclosure of potential liabilities, and these
assumptions and estimates affect revenues, expenses and provisions as well as changes in fair
value, and in particular requires the group management to issue Important judgments and
judgments for estimating the amounts and times of future cash flows. These estimates are
necessarily based on multiple assumptions and factors that have varying degrees of estimation
and uncertainty, and that the actual results may differ from the estimates as a result of changes
resulting from the conditions and circumstances of those estimates in the future.
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5. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation of Uncertainty
(continued)

Significant accounting assumptions

The important assumptions, apart from those that include estimates, that management has made
in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies and that have a significant effect on the
values recognized in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Investment Classification

The Group's management classifies investments as investments at fair value through profit and
loss or as investments at fair value through other comprehensive income when purchasing those
investments when making its judgments as to whether these investments are investments at fair
value through profit and loss or at fair value through comprehensive income. On the other hand,
management has taken into consideration the detailed conditions for determining this
classification as set out in IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments. Management believes that the
investments have been appropriately classified.

property classification

In its classification of the properties, management has made a number of assumptions. These
assumptions are required in determining the property's eligibility for classification as investment
property, property and equipment, inventory property, projects under construction, or property
held for sale. Management develops criteria to enable it to apply these assumptions continually
in line with the definition of investment in real estate, property and equipment, real estate
inventory, projects under construction, and property held for sale. In making these assumptions,
management has taken into consideration the detailed standards and guidance contained in
International Accounting Standard (IAS) No. (2) Inventories, International Accounting Standard
(IAS) No. (16) Property, Plant and Equipment, and International Accounting Standard (IAS) No.
(40) Investments in real estate.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty

Management believes that its use of estimates in the consolidated financial statements is
reasonable and is detailed as follows:

Evaluation of the liabilities arising from the outstanding claims of insurance contracts: The
liabilities resulting from the outstanding claims of insurance contracts are the most sensitive
accounting forecasts due to the presence of many uncertain factors that affect the estimated
liabilities and the obligations to be paid.

Liabilities arising from unpaid claims that were reported as at the date of the consolidated financial
statements are estimated based on the reports of experts, lawyers and the Group’s experience
and estimates by determining the value of the expected total costs for each claim separately.
Liabilities arising from claims incurred but not reported as at the date of the consolidated financial
statements are estimated by reference to the claims rate for prior periods. As at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, the above obligations are reassessed and the provision is
adjusted accordingly.

Allowance for expected credit losses: The Group recognizes allowances for expected credit losses
on financial instruments measured at amortized cost, trade receivables, receivables from
insurance companies and reinsurers, and insurance and reinsurance contract assets. Provisions
for expected credit losses are reviewed periodically in subsequent periods to reflect the change
in credit risk since the initial recognition of the financial asset.
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5. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation of Uncertainty
(continued)

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty

The Group always calculates the expected credit loss over the life of trade receivables, receivables
from insurance companies and reinsurers, and insurance and reinsurance contract assets. The
expected credit loss of these financial assets is also estimated based on the historical information
of credit losses according to the records of the group, and it is adjusted after taking into account
several factors related to the debtor parties, the existing economic situation and evaluating the
current economic situation and the expected economic situation as on the date of preparing the
consolidated financial statements taking into account Consider the present value of cash at that
time where necessary.

Taxes: The year is charged with its tax expense in accordance with the applicable regulations,
laws and accounting standards, and the deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized and the
necessary tax provision is made.

Provision for employee compensation: the provision for end of service indemnity is calculated in
accordance with the labor law applicable in the Palestinian Authority regions.

Useful lives of tangible and intangible assets: The management re-estimates the useful lives of
tangible and intangible assets periodically for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and
amortization depending on the general condition of those assets and estimates of the expected
useful lives in the future, and the impairment loss is recorded in the income statement for the
year.

Assessment of financial assets: The management periodically reviews the financial assets that
appear at cost to estimate any impairment in their value, and the impairment is taken into the
consolidated income statement.

Contingent liabilities: a provision is made for cases filed against the group based on a legal study
prepared by the group's lawyer and legal advisor, according to which the potential risks that may
occur in the future are determined, and those studies are reviewed periodically.

Liability adequacy: On the date of the consolidated financial statements, liability adequacy tests
are applied to verify the adequacy of insurance contract obligations. The Group uses its best
estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims received, administrative expenses as well as
investment income from the assets backing those liabilities in order to assess the adequacy of
the obligation. Any deficiency is recognized in the consolidated statement of income by creating
a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests.
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

As of December 31, 2021

Furniture
Equipment

and tools
Computers
equipment

Air conditioning
and electricity

network
Motor

vehicles

Decorations
and

improvements
Buildings and

real estate Total
USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Cost/Revaluation

Balance as of January 1, 2021 873,730 1,107,244 897,659 320,964 704,796 1,242,106 4,599,983 9,746,482
Additions during the year 133,215 105,140 6,905 4,009 167,464 48,396 172,585 637,714
Disposals during the year (175,048) (89,907) (340,583) - (71,771) (2,610) - (679,919)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 831,897 1,122,477 563,981 324,973 800,489 1,287,892 4,772,568 9,704,277

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as of January 1, 2021 565,942 826,310 868,645 310,790 366,854 668,699 866,039 4,473,279
Depreciation 20,418 27,265 5,499 6,450 91,750 81,885 67,635 300,902
Disposals during the year (66,279) (169,208) (340,581) (17,676) (38,415) - - (632,159)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 520,081 684,367 533,563 299,564 420,189 750,584 933,674 4,142,022
Net book value as of December 31, 2021 311,816 438,110 30,418 25,409 380,300 537,308 3,838,894 5,562,255



of the group.

Details of investment property and the fair value measurements as of December 31, 2021 are as
follows:

8. Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income

* The above investments include shares of companies reserved for membership of the board of
directors in the amount of USD 120,800 as of December 31, 2021 (an amount of USD 49,325
as of December 31, 2020).

** Investments in unlisted companies were evaluated based on the most recent financial
information of the investee companies.

See Note No. (35), which shows details of the fair value of these financial assets and information
on how to determine their fair values.

Plots and buildings

Investments in listed companies
Investments in unlisted companies

of the group.

Details of investment property and the fair value measurements as of December 31, 2021 are as
follows:

8. Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income

* The above investments include shares of companies reserved for membership of the board of
directors in the amount of USD 120,800 as of December 31, 2021 (an amount of USD 49,325
as of December 31, 2020).

** Investments in unlisted companies were evaluated based on the most recent financial
information of the investee companies.

See Note No. (35), which shows details of the fair value of these financial assets and information
on how to determine their fair values.

Plots and buildings

Investments in listed companies
Investments in unlisted companies
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net (continued)

As of December 31, 2020

Furniture
Equipment

and tools
Computers
equipment

Air conditioning
and electricity

network
Motor

vehicles

Decorations
and

improvements
Buildings and

real estate Total
USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Cost/Revaluation

Balance as of January 1, 2020 861,056 1,071,609 883,618 320,964 623,939 1,131,121 4,517,724 9,410,031
Additions during the year 21,604 35,635 14,041 - 104,976 110,985 82,259 369,500
Disposals during the year (8,930) - - - (24,119) - - (33,049)
Balance as of December 31, 2020 873,730 1,107,244 897,659 320,964 704,796 1,242,106 4,599,983 9,746,482

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as of January 1, 2020 552,140 791,791 863,479 309,810 308,198 589,622 819,950 4,234,990
Depreciation 16,781 34,519 5,166 980 69,823 79,077 46,089 252,435
Disposals during the year (2,979) - - - (11,167) - - (14,146)
Balance as of December 31, 2020 565,942 826,310 868,645 310,790 366,854 668,699 866,039 4,473,279
Net book value as of December 31, 2020 307,788 280,934 29,014 10,174 337,942 573,407 3,733,944 5,273,203
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Buildings and property 584,148 841,537
12,188,917 14,169,370

   Investments in plots of land of the parent company have been classified as investment
property held for the purpose of benefiting from an increase in their capital value, with the
exception of the property value of the company’s headquarters that are used for the
company's administrative purposes.

   Investment property whose market value has changed as of December 31, 2021, were
reassessed according to the market price based on the average price of valuation reports
approved by the Palestinian Capital Market Authority and independent  of  the Group,  the
difference in the market value from the book value amounted to USD 333,072 compared to
USD 1,109,794 as of December 31, 2020, which was shown in revaluation of investment
property account within the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

   Includes a plot of land in the Madaba area in Jordan with a total value of USD 895,785 as
of December 31, 2021, registered in the name of other parties for the interest and benefit

Details of investment property and the fair value measurements as of December 31, 2021 are as

Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income

 The above investments include shares of companies reserved for membership of the board of
directors in the amount of USD 120,800 as of December 31, 2021 (an amount of USD 49,325
as of December 31, 2020).

Investments in unlisted companies were evaluated based on the most recent financial
information of the investee companies.

See Note No. (35), which shows details of the fair value of these financial assets and information
on how to determine their fair values.

Fair value as of
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31, 2021

USD USD USD USD

Plots and buildings - 12,188,917 - 12,188,917
- 12,188,917 - 12,188,917

2021 2020
USD USD

Investments in listed companies * 4,645,853 3,073,991
Investments in unlisted companies ** 90,393 90,393

4,736,246 3,164,384
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Share Capital
Statuary
Reserve

Cumulative
Change in
Fair Value

Currency
Translation

Variance
Retained

Earnings *

  Equity
  Attributable to
  Owners of the

Company

  Equity Attributable
 -to the non

controlling interest Total Equity
USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Balance as of January 1, 2021 5,200,000 1,115,833 1,561,512 (1,005,018) 2,913,174 9,785,501 5,815,868 15,601,369
Profit for the Period - - - - 875,911 875,911 192,599 1,068,510
Other Comprehensive Income - - 1,190,334 52,246 - 1,242,580 (1,020) 1,241,560
Total Other Comprehensive For The Period - - 1,190,334 52,246 875,911 2,118,491 191,579 2,310,070

Dividends Paid (Note 26) - - - - (130,000) (130,000) - (130,000)
Increase in Capital (Note 2) 300,000 - - - (300,000) - - -
Change in Non Controlling Interest - - - - - - (160,688) (160,688)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 87,591 - - (87,591) - - -
Balance as of December 31, 2021 5,500,000 1,203,424 2,751,846 (952,772) 3,271,494 11,773,992 5,846,759 17,620,751

Balance as of January 1, 2020 5,200,000 1,012,728 1,545,042 (481,014) 2,115,227 9,391,983 5,665,382 15,057,365
Profit for the Period - - - - 1,031,052 1,031,052 221,419 1,252,471
Other Comprehensive Income - - 16,470 (524,004) - (507,534) - (507,534)
Total Other Comprehensive For The Period - - 16,470 (524,004) 1,031,052 523,518 221,419 744,937

Dividends Paid (Note 26) - - - - (130,000) (130,000) - (130,000)
Change in Non Controlling Interest - - - - - - (70,933) (70,933)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 103,105 - - (103,105) - - -

Balance as of December 31, 2020 5,200,000 1,115,833 1,561,512 (1,005,018) 2,913,174 9,785,501 5,815,868 15,601,369

* Retained earnings balance includes an amount of USD 794,127 held against the financial impact that may result from the application of IFRS 17 on unearned premium reserve.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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7. Investment Property
2021 2020
USD USD

Plots of land 11,604,769 13,327,833
Buildings and property 584,148 841,537

12,188,917 14,169,370

   Investments in plots of land of the parent company have been classified as investment
property held for the purpose of benefiting from an increase in their capital value, with the
exception of the property value of the company’s headquarters that are used for the
company's administrative purposes.

   Investment property whose market value has changed as of December 31, 2021, were
reassessed according to the market price based on the average price of valuation reports
approved by the Palestinian Capital Market Authority and independent  of  the Group,  the
difference in the market value from the book value amounted to USD 333,072 compared to
USD 1,109,794 as of December 31, 2020, which was shown in revaluation of investment
property account within the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

   Includes a plot of land in the Madaba area in Jordan with a total value of USD 895,785 as
of December 31, 2021, registered in the name of other parties for the interest and benefit
of the group.

Details of investment property and the fair value measurements as of December 31, 2021 are as
follows:

8. Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income

* The above investments include shares of companies reserved for membership of the board of
directors in the amount of USD 120,800 as of December 31, 2021 (an amount of USD 49,325
as of December 31, 2020).

** Investments in unlisted companies were evaluated based on the most recent financial
information of the investee companies.

See Note No. (35), which shows details of the fair value of these financial assets and information
on how to determine their fair values.

Fair value as of
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31, 2021

USD USD USD USD

Plots and buildings - 12,188,917 - 12,188,917
- 12,188,917 - 12,188,917

2021 2020
USD USD

Investments in listed companies * 4,645,853 3,073,991
Investments in unlisted companies ** 90,393 90,393

4,736,246 3,164,384

 Al Mashreq Insurance Company and its Subsidiaries
 Public Shareholding Company
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Share Capital
Statuary
Reserve

Cumulative
Change in
Fair Value

Currency
Translation

Variance
Retained

Earnings *

  Equity
  Attributable to
  Owners of the

Company

  Equity Attributable
 -to the non

controlling interest Total Equity
USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Balance as of January 1, 2021 5,200,000 1,115,833 1,561,512 (1,005,018) 2,913,174 9,785,501 5,815,868 15,601,369
Profit for the Period - - - - 875,911 875,911 192,599 1,068,510
Other Comprehensive Income - - 1,190,334 52,246 - 1,242,580 (1,020) 1,241,560
Total Other Comprehensive For The Period - - 1,190,334 52,246 875,911 2,118,491 191,579 2,310,070

Dividends Paid (Note 26) - - - - (130,000) (130,000) - (130,000)
Increase in Capital (Note 2) 300,000 - - - (300,000) - - -
Change in Non Controlling Interest - - - - - - (160,688) (160,688)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 87,591 - - (87,591) - - -
Balance as of December 31, 2021 5,500,000 1,203,424 2,751,846 (952,772) 3,271,494 11,773,992 5,846,759 17,620,751

Balance as of January 1, 2020 5,200,000 1,012,728 1,545,042 (481,014) 2,115,227 9,391,983 5,665,382 15,057,365
Profit for the Period - - - - 1,031,052 1,031,052 221,419 1,252,471
Other Comprehensive Income - - 16,470 (524,004) - (507,534) - (507,534)
Total Other Comprehensive For The Period - - 16,470 (524,004) 1,031,052 523,518 221,419 744,937

Dividends Paid (Note 26) - - - - (130,000) (130,000) - (130,000)
Change in Non Controlling Interest - - - - - - (70,933) (70,933)
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 103,105 - - (103,105) - - -

Balance as of December 31, 2020 5,200,000 1,115,833 1,561,512 (1,005,018) 2,913,174 9,785,501 5,815,868 15,601,369

* Retained earnings balance includes an amount of USD 794,127 held against the financial impact that may result from the application of IFRS 17 on unearned premium reserve.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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7. Investment Property
2021 2020
USD USD

Plots of land 11,604,769 13,327,833
Buildings and property 584,148 841,537

12,188,917 14,169,370

   Investments in plots of land of the parent company have been classified as investment
property held for the purpose of benefiting from an increase in their capital value, with the
exception of the property value of the company’s headquarters that are used for the
company's administrative purposes.

   Investment property whose market value has changed as of December 31, 2021, were
reassessed according to the market price based on the average price of valuation reports
approved by the Palestinian Capital Market Authority and independent  of  the Group,  the
difference in the market value from the book value amounted to USD 333,072 compared to
USD 1,109,794 as of December 31, 2020, which was shown in revaluation of investment
property account within the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

   Includes a plot of land in the Madaba area in Jordan with a total value of USD 895,785 as
of December 31, 2021, registered in the name of other parties for the interest and benefit
of the group.

Details of investment property and the fair value measurements as of December 31, 2021 are as
follows:

8. Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income

* The above investments include shares of companies reserved for membership of the board of
directors in the amount of USD 120,800 as of December 31, 2021 (an amount of USD 49,325
as of December 31, 2020).

** Investments in unlisted companies were evaluated based on the most recent financial
information of the investee companies.

See Note No. (35), which shows details of the fair value of these financial assets and information
on how to determine their fair values.

Fair value as of
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31, 2021

USD USD USD USD

Plots and buildings - 12,188,917 - 12,188,917
- 12,188,917 - 12,188,917

2021 2020
USD USD

Investments in listed companies * 4,645,853 3,073,991
Investments in unlisted companies ** 90,393 90,393

4,736,246 3,164,384
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9- Mandatory deposits

Mandatory deposits represent deposits with banks tied to the order of the Palestinian Capital Market Authority in accordance with the
decisions issued by the Palestinian Capital Market Authority No. (2/T) of 2007 regarding determining the value of the deposit required from
insurance companies under Insurance Law No. (20) of 2005. Use it only with prior approval or with written permission from the Authority.

10- Deferred tax assets

Consists of income tax arising from the timing differences of some items of expenses that are not subject to tax when recorded but are
subject to a deduction allowed in subsequent years and consist of the provision for employee benefits and the provision for expected credit
losses of the parent company only. Here are the details of the transaction made on this account:

The movement on deferred tax assets during the year is as follows:

2021 2020
USD USD

Balance at the beginning of the year 910,379 736,531
Deferred tax for the year 159,587 173,848
Balance at the end of the year 1,069,966 910,379

Balance at the
beginning of

the year
Amounts
released Amounts added

Opening
Balance

Translation
Differences

Balance at the
end of the year

Deferred tax
assets

2021

Deferred tax
assets

2020
USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Expected credit loss 2,122,981 - 96,285 78,805 2,298,071 614,140 567,349

Employee benefits
provision 1,283,598 (137,025) 499,705 59,394 1,705,672 455,826 343,030

3,406,579 (137,025) 595,990 138,199 4,003,743 1,069,966 910,379
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11. Accounts Receivable - Net

2021 2020
USD USD

Account receivable - customers 14,832,180 14,357,722

Account receivable - agents 2,251,684 1,861,832

Account receivable - employees 476,540 328,291

17,560,404 16,547,845
Less: provision for expected credit losses (2,791,896) (2,546,806)

14,768,508 14,001,039

The average credit period is 210 days and no interest are charged on outstanding receivables.

Movement on provision for expected credit losses is as follows:

2021 2020
USD USD

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,546,806 2,010,106
Provision during the year 166,285 434,593
Opening balance currency differences 78,805 144,746
Transferred to provision for expected credit losses on
checks - (42,639)
Balance at the end of the year 2,791,896 2,546,806

12. Insurance and Reinsurance Companies Receivables

2021 2020
USD USD

Receivables from local insurance companies 295,637 398,038
295,637 398,038



Al Mashreq Insurance Company and its subsidiaries
Public Shareholding Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2021

37

13. Insurance Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Contract Assets

* The reserve for motors outstanding claims reported unsettled was calculated net of recoveries
according to the estimates of experts in the group. Final amounts depend on final clearance
procedures with parties involved. The amount of recoveries deducted from claims reported
unsettled reserve as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, was as follows:

2021 2020
USD USD

Recoveries from individuals and local insurance
companies 3,923,926 3,321,130
Recoveries from Palestinian Road Accident Victims
Compensation Fund 1,793,645 1,732,372
Recoveries from other parties 3,536,927 3,102,763
Less: recoveries under settlement that cannot be
predicted (3,117,448) (2,928,578)
Net recoveries 6,137,050 5,227,687

14. Financial Investments through Profit and Loss

2021 2020
USD USD

Investments in listed companies 2,464,797 954,021
2,464,797 954,021

See Note No. (35), which shows details of the fair value of these financial assets and information
on how to determine their fair values.

2021 2020
USD USD

Total:
Insurance contract liabilities
Claims reported unsettled reserve 32,003,167 28,097,750
Less: recoveries, net * (6,137,050) (5,227,687)
Net claims reported unsettled 25,866,117 22,870,063
Unreported claims reserve (Pure) 450,160 450,160
Unearned premium reserve 14,150,495 11,042,606
Total insurance contract liabilities 40,466,772 34,362,829

Reinsurance contract assets
Claims reported unsettled reserve 4,618,377 3,665,419
Unearned premium reserve 1,177,661 884,160
Total reinsurance contract assets 5,796,038 4,549,579

Net insurance contract liabilities
Claims reported unsettled reserve 21,247,740 19,204,644
Unreported claims reserve (Pure) 450,160 450,160
Unearned premium reserve 12,972,834 10,158,446

34,670,733 29,813,250
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15. Property Inventory

16. Other Debit Balances

17. Right of Use and Lease and Liabilities

The movement on the right of use and lease liabilities is as follows:

As of December 31, 2021:

Right of use Lease liability
USD USD

Balance as of January 1, 2021 188,498 193,530
Paid during the year - (56,297)
Currency differences 4,489 4,489
Amortization during the year (56,474) -
Balance as of December 31, 2021 136,513 141,722

As of December 31, 2020:

Right of use Lease liability
USD USD

Balance as of January 1, 2020 203,192 207,874
Contracts additions during the year 28,380 28,380
Paid during the year 56,124
Currency differences 13,400 13,400
Amortization during the year 56,474
Balance as of December 31, 2020 188,498 193,530

2021 2020
USD USD

Plots of land 2,287,706 1,060,085
Apartments 307,895 307,895

2,595,601 1,367,980

2021 2020
USD USD

Prepaid expenses 89,136 89,434
Employee loans and advances 10,039 7,551
Trusts and other debits 60,594 42,854
Advance payments on investment purchases 39,941 40,074

199,710 179,913
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18. A Cash and Cash Equivalent

2021 2020
USD USD

Cash in hand 101,062   42,660
Cash at banks - New Israeli shekel (NIS) 2,588,573 2,897,950
Cash at banks - Jordanian dinars (JOD) 619,025 390,644
Cash at banks - US dollars (USD) 383,581 1,417,425
Cash at banks – Euro (EUR) 37,420 18,407

3,729,661 4,767,086

18. B Deposits at Bank

Contains fixed deposits in amount USD 276,007 held as collateral for obtaining facilities from local
bank as of December 31, 2021.

18. C Cheques Under Collections, Net

2021 2020
USD USD

Checks under collection due within one year 17,133,388 12,157,776
Checks under collection due after one year 5,018,082 2,865,981

22,151,470 15,023,757
Allowance for expected credit losses* (98,266) (53,727)
Transferred from allowance for expected credit loss on
accounts receivable - (42,639)
Finance discount allowance** (440,032) (226,639)

21,613,172 14,700,752

* The movement in the allowance account for expected credit losses is as follows:

2021 2020
USD USD

Balance at the beginning of the year 96,366 92,639
Opening balance currency differences 1,900 3.727
Balance at the end of the year 98,266 96,366

** The financing discount provision amounted to USD 440,032 using a discount rate of 4% as of
December 31, 2021, compared to USD 226,639 as of December 31, 2020.

2021 2020
USD USD

Deposits due within three months 2,039,786 2,757,239
Deposits due after three months 920,473 37,310

2,960,259 2,794,549
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19. Change in Fair Value

2021 2020
USD USD

Gain (loss) from valuation differences of financial
investments through other comprehensive income 991,922  (198,412)
Gain from revaluation of property investments 1,759,924 1,759,924

2,751,846 1,561,512
Movement on this account is as follows:

2021 2020
USD USD

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,561,512 1,545,042
Change in fair value of financial investments 1,190,334 16,470

2,751,846 1,561,512

20. Provision for Employees End of Service Benefits

Movement on provision for employees end of service benefits during the year is as follows:

21. Accounts Payables

22. Insurance and Reinsurance Companies Payable

2021 2020
USD USD

Employees end of service benefits 1,809,510 1,352,511
1,809,510 1,352,511

2021 2020
USD USD

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,352,511 1,256,058
Additions for the year 544,235 262,848
Payment for the year (147,274) 255,534
Opening balance currency differences 60,038 89,139
Balance at the end of the year 1,809,510 1,352,511

2021 2020
USD USD

Account payable – customers and agents 6,995,505 6,040,277
Account payable – employees 621,098 586,901

7,616,603 6,627,178

2021 2020
USD USD

Receivables from local insurance companies 1,200,238 201,459
Reinsurance companies’ payables 405,508 1,002,529

1,605,746 1,203,988
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23. Other Credit Balances

24. Other Provisions

* The group obtained a final settlement with the Income Tax and Value Added Tax Department
until December 31, 2016 and is currently discussing the company’s financial statements to obtain
a final settlement for the years 2017 to 2020. In the opinion of the group’s management, the
allocated provisions are sufficient to pay the tax burdens expected to be paid for those years.

The movement on tax provisions during 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021 2020
USD USD

Unpaid accrued expenses 66,900 212,421
Shareholders' share from capital reduction 167,133 167,717
dividend payable 77,850 77,993
Dedicated to complete projects 114,809 352,808
Deposit and other credit balances 1,435,196 953,795

1,861,888 1,764,734

2021 2020
USD USD

Due to the Palestinian Road Accident Victims
Compensation Fund 157,701 252,948
Dues to Palestinian Capital Market Authority 32,200 27,525
Dues to Palestinian Federation of Insurance
Companies 12,681 5,907
Tax provisions net of advances paid* 2,226,834 2,387,346

2,429,416 2,673,726

2021 2020
USD USD

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,387,346 1,742,797
Provision for the year 433,921 710,298
Payment for the year (303,461) 273,747
Currency differences (290,972) 207,998
Balance at the end of the year 2,226,834 2,387,346
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25. Murabaha financing

Aqariya Trading Investment Company (a subsidiary) obtained financing from one of the local
banks with a financial ceiling of JOD 2,127,354, equivalent to USD 2,999,570, and a Murabaha
rate of 4% for the purposes of buying real estate. The financing is paid in monthly installments
of 60 installments amounted to JOD 35,456, equivalent to $49,993. The guarantees for obtaining
the financing were as follows:

Obtaining 10 insurance checks with the value of the total financing drawn on the company's
account with another bank.

Continuing to deposit post-dated checks until they reach a value of USD 900,000.
Obtaining a first-class mortgage in favor of the bank, amounting to USD 1,500,000.

The  utilized  and  accrued  balance  as  of  December  31,  2021  amounted  to  JOD  1,334,234,
equivalent to USD 1,881,854 of the granted financing ceiling.

During 2021, Aqariya Trading Investment Company obtained a loan from one of the other local
banks on April 8, 2021, at a value of USD 1,400,000, at an interest rate of 5.5% annually for the
purposes of purchasing a plot of land. The loan is repaid in 36 monthly installments, and the
value of the installment is USD 55,556. The guarantees for obtaining the loan were the deposit
of collection checks not less than 21% of the value of the ceiling of the loans granted by the bank,
provided that they are real commercial checks of various drawers, and the concentration
percentage does not exceed 51% within 3 months from the date of implementing the loan.

The loan balance amounted to USD 1,400,000 as of December 31, 2021.

26. Dividends distributed to shareholders

During the period, the Group paid an amount of USD 130,000 as dividends to shareholders for
the year 2020 pursuant to the approval of General Assembly in its meeting held on April 28,
2021, compared with an amount of USD 130,000 paid during 2020 as dividends to shareholders
for 2019 pursuant to the approval of the General Assembly at its meeting held on April 30, 2020,
as well. Also, during the period, the General Assembly approved the distribution of free shares to
shareholders, at a value of USD 300,000.
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27.   Net Profit for the Year by Operating Segments

The following table represents a summary of revenues and results by insurance segment for the year ended December 31, 2021:

Investment
Motor General Workmen Public Fire Health Marine and Treasury Total

Insurance Accidents Compensation Engineering Liability Insurance Insurance Insurance Segment December 31, 2021
USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Gross written premium 28,475,596 491,056 2,603,572 477,426 449,818 1,168,792 5,582,532 595,718 - 39,844,510
Change in Unearned Premium Reserve (1,303,223) (26,539) (87,623) (22,370) (22,951) (46,248) (1,090,237) (17,170) - (2,616,361)
Earned Premium Income 27,172,373 464,517 2,515,949 455,056 426,867 1,122,544 4,492,295 578,548 - 37,228,149

Reinsurance Premiums (792,454) (236,837) (135,711) (292,115) (123,633) (830,300) - (432,692) - (2,843,742)
Change in Reinsurance Share of Unearned Premium Reserve 63,630 64,586 27,146 21,745 19,307 40,049 - 16,024 - 252,487
Net Reinsurance Premiums (728,824) (172,251) (108,565) (270,370) (104,326) (790,251) - (416,668) - (2,591,255)

Net Insurance Premiums Earned 26,443,549 292,266 2,407,384 184,686 322,541 332,293 4,492,295 161,880 - 34,636,894

Gross Reinsurance Premium Commission Earned 117 22,286 5,277 69,609 1,181 124,801 - 63,931 - 287,202
Less: Commissions Paid (1,195,615) (51,057) (61,646) (4,899) (13,059) (34,136) (36,023) (51,732) - (1,448,167)
Net Insurance Premiums Earned after Commissions 25,248,051 263,495 2,351,015 249,396 310,663 422,958 4,456,272 174,079 - 33,475,929

Investments Income 257,599 4,372 23,620 4,420 4,227 11,437 55,333 6,245 - 367,253

Claims Incurred
Paid Claims 19,168,965 22,509 916,485 154,399 132,220 255,554 2,884,396 (15,659) - 23,518,869
Less: Reinsurance Share from Paid Claims - (28,262) - (103,272) - (299,304) - (7,918) - (438,756)
Net Paid Claims 19,168,965 (5,753) 916,485 51,127 132,220 (43,750) 2,884,396 (23,577) - 23,080,113
Change in Outstanding Claims 1,201,388 40,737 (17,442) 10,618 (22,772) 234,849 619,195 23,984 - 2,090,557
Change in Reinsurance Share (752,182) (46,932) 255,422 (11,169) (12,262) (203,142) - (22,461) - (792,726)
Net Claims Incurred 19,618,171 (11,948) 1,154,465 50,576 97,186 (12,043) 3,503,591 (22,054) - 24,377,944

Net Insurance Activity Before Administrative Expenses 5,887,479 279,815 1,220,170 203,240 217,704 446,438 1,008,014 202,378 - 9,465,238
General And Administrative Expenses Related to Insurance Activities (5,438,350) (92,293) (498,668) (93,314) (89,244) (241,463) (1,168,171) (131,835) - (7,753,338)
Net profit / (loss) of Insurance Activity After Administrative Expenses 449,129 187,522 721,502 109,926 128,460 204,975 (160,157) 70,543 - 1,711,900
Unallocated Revenues and Expenses
Bank interest and Charges - - - - - - - - (44,039) (44,039)
(Loss) on Currency Exchange Revaluation - - - - - - - - (292,650) (292,650)
Provision for Expected Credit Loss - - - - - - - - (166,285) (166,285)
Loss from Sale of Property and Equipment - - - - - - - - (3,644) (3,644)
General and Administrative Expenses not Allocated to Insurance Activities - - - - - - - - (1,467,933) (1,467,933)
Amortization of Right of Use Asset - - - - - - - - (56,474) (56,474)
Interest on lease Obligations - - - - - - - - (9,967) (9,967)
Other Revenues not allocated to Insurance Activities - - - - - - - - 867,774 867,774
Gain from Revaluation of Financial Investments Through P&L - - - - - - - - 474,536 474,536
Gain from Revaluation of Property Investments - - - - - - - - 333,072 333,072
Gain from Sale of Property Investments - - - - - - - - (3,446) (3,446)
Net Profit / (Loss) Before Taxes 449,129 187,522 721,502 109,926 128,460 204,975 (160,157) 70,543 (369,056) 1,342,844
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27.  Net Profit for the Year by Operating Segments (Continued)

The following table represents a summary of revenues and results by insurance segment for the year ended December 31, 2020:

Investment
Motor General Workmen Public Fire Health Marine and Treasury Total

Insurance Accidents Compensation Engineering Liability Insurance Insurance Insurance Segment December 31, 2020
USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD USD

Gross written premium 22,864,882 284,927 2,068,702 391,740 354,747 1,009,267 3,066,992 408,906 - 30,450,163
Change in Unearned Premium Reserve 285,720 30,973 (3,961) 21,952 (10,029) 24,629 (105,649) (4,079) - 239,556
Earned Premium Income 23,150,602 315,900 2,064,741 413,692 344,718 1,033,896 2,961,343 404,827 - 30,689,719

Reinsurance Premiums (1,124,901) (129,257) (135,557) (229,104) (107,722) (668,436) (201) (246,935) - (2,642,113)
Change in Reinsurance Share of Unearned Premium Reserve (13,951) (25,093) 194 (19,105) 490 (21,780) - 2,362 - (76,883)
Net Reinsurance Premiums (1,138,852) (154,350) (135,363) (248,209) (107,232) (690,216) (201) (244,573) - (2,718,996)

Net Insurance Premiums Earned 22,011,750 161,550 1,929,378 165,483 237,486 343,680 2,961,142 160,254 - 27,970,723

Gross Reinsurance Premium Commission Earned 110 13,529 3,587 58,635 733 122,259 6 62,347 - 261,206
Less: Commissions Paid (1,008,846) (29,433) (62,484) (5,588) (10,484) (31,543) (16,557) (37,193) - (1,202,128)
Net Insurance Premiums Earned after Commissions 21,003,014 145,646 1,870,481 218,530 227,735 434,396 2,944,591 185,408 - 27,029,801

Investments Income 198,842 2,652 17,950 3,397 3,158 8,927 29,040 3,556 - 267,522

Claims Incurred
Paid Claims 12,951,992 10,445 810,809 414,331 22,872 489,223 2,658,113 40,811 - 17,398,596
Less: Reinsurance Share from Paid Claims - (14,953) - (291,564) - (375,294) - 4,513 - (677,298)
Net Paid Claims 12,951,992 (4,508) 810,809 122,767 22,872 113,929 2,658,113 45,324 - 16,721,298
Change in Outstanding Claims 1,334,938 (22,525) 647,411 65,692 52,009 (110,039) - (106,661) - 1,860,825
Change in Reinsurance Share 111,084 25,243 (3,139) (54,699) - 95,766 - 96,118 - 270,373
Net Claims Incurred 14,398,014 (1,790) 1,455,081 133,760 74,881 99,656 2,658,113 34,781 - 18,852,496

Net Insurance Activity Before Administrative Expenses 6,803,842 150,088 433,350 88,167 156,012 343,667 315,518 154,183 - 8,444,827
General And Administrative Expenses Related to Insurance Activities (4,370,787) (58,301) (394,554) (74,670) (69,409) (196,234) (638,342) (78,171) - (5,880,468)
Net profit / (loss) of Insurance Activity After Administrative Expenses 2,433,055 91,787 38,796 13,497 86,603 147,433 (322,824) 76,012 - 2,564,359
Unallocated Revenues and Expenses
Bank interest and Charges - - - - - - - - (33,773) (33,773)
(Loss) on Currency Exchange Revaluation - - - - - - - - (151,560) (151,560)
Provision for Expected Credit Loss - - - - - - - - (434,593) (434,593)
Gain from Sale of Property and Equipment - - - - - - - - 1,064 1,064
General and Administrative Expenses not Allocated to Insurance Activities - - - - - - - - (1,238,133) (1,238,133)
Amortization of Right of Use Asset - - - - - - - - (56,474) (56,474)
Interest on lease liabilities - - - - - - - - (2,606) (2,606)
Other Revenues not allocated to Insurance Activities - - - - - - - - 191,684 191,684
(Loss) from Revaluation of Financial Investments Through P&L - - - - - - - - (160,841) (160,841)
Gain from Revaluation of Property Investments - - - - - - - - 1,109,794 1,109,794
Net Profit / (Loss) Before Taxes 2,433,055 91,787 38,796 13,497 86,603 147,433 (322,824) 76,012 (775,438) 1,788,921
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28. General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses of the parent company for the year ended on December 31,
2021 have been distributed among the various insurance branches and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, according to Note No. (4-6) - general and administrative expenses,
as follows:

29. Other Income not allocated to Insurance Activities

2021 2020
USD USD

Salaries and related benefits 6,584,503 4,867,630
End of service indemnity and employees’ vacation 760,611 538,010
Provident fund 112,368 89,171
Stationery 115,250 100,237
Travel and transportation 81,612 87,527
Rent and utilities 213,119 199,675
Donations 62,804 82,577
Telephone, fax, internet and postage 145,052 117,703
Car expenses 147,331 120,874
Hospitality 60,718 44,262
Maintenance and repairs 116,686 115,951
Depreciation 300,902 252,435
Professional fees and advisory expenses 253,048 209,004
Subscriptions and fees 201,487 200,832
Other expenses 65,780 92,713

9,221,271 7,118,601

2021 2020
USD USD

Motor insurance 5,438,350 4,370,787
General accidents 92,293 58,301
Engineering 93,314 74,670
Fire insurance 241,463 196,234
Workmen compensation 498,668 394,554
Public liability 89,244 69,409
Health insurance 1,168,171 638,342
Marine insurance 131,835 78,171

7,753,338 5,880,468
Directly charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss 1,467,933 1,238,133

9,221,271 7,118,601

2021 2020
USD USD

Revenues from the operating business of Aqariya
Trading Investment Company 841,968 161,959
Other miscellaneous income 25,806 29,725

867,774 191,684
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30.   Related Party Transactions

Related parties represent subsidiaries and affiliates, major shareholders, senior management and
any company that it controls or has significant influence over it. Prices and terms related to
transactions with related parties are approved by the Group Board of Directors.

As at the end of the period, the amounts due (from / to) the related parties were included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes the following transactions with related
parties:

2021 2020
USD USD

Insurance premiums 246,613 220,562
Outstanding claims 9,003 5,233
Paid claims 4,248
Salaries of senior management and executive
management of the group 888,342 305,197)

31. Basic Earnings Per Share Attributable to the Owners of the Parent Company

Basic earnings per share has been calculated on the basis of dividing the profit for the period by
the weighted average number of common stock outstanding during the period as follows:

2021 2020
USD USD

Net income attributable to owners of the parent company 875,911 1,031,052

Weighted average number of common stocks 5,500,000 5,500,000

Basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the parent company 0.16 0.19

32. Group legal cases

The number of cases filed against the group was (696) cases as of December 31, 2021, compared
to (598) cases as of December 31, 2020, against legal disputes over existing claims for insurance
contracts. According to the company’s legal advisor, all of these cases have sufficient provision
in place according to the technical and legal principles. In contrast, the number of cases filed by
the group against third parties amounted to (668) cases with the aim of restoring the group’s
rights with third parties against unpaid insurance policies, recovery files or returned checks as of
December 31, 2021 compared to (928) cases for the year 2020.

2021 2020
USD USD

Account receivable 241,012 257,292
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33. Insurance and financial risk management

Insurance risk

The risks of any insurance contract are the possibility of the occurrence of the insured event and
the uncertainty of the amount of the claim related to that event, due to the nature of the insurance
contract, where the risks are volatile and unpredictable. The group is that the claims incurred
and related payments may exceed the carrying amount of the insurance obligations, and this
may happen if the possibility and seriousness of the claims are greater than expected, and
because insurance events are not fixed and vary from year to year, estimates may differ from
the related statistics.

Studies have shown that the more similar insurance contracts are, the closer the expectations
are to the actual loss rate, and the presence of diversification in the insurance risks that are
covered leads to a lower probability of total insurance loss.

The Group has developed its insurance underwriting plan to ensure diversification of the insurance
risks that are covered and their distribution to different types of insurance, which helps to reduce
losses that may result from insurance claims if the focus is on a particular insurance category.

The group has technical staff and investigators to estimate the claims reported during the year.
These cadres investigate and make recommendations through which the risks of claims can be
reduced. The risks are reviewed periodically at the end of each year and adjusted to reflect the
most recent information on the underlying facts, applicable laws, and contractual terms and
conditions. The Group manages and monitors early settlement of any claims to reduce any risks
that may arise from unforeseen developments.

The estimated cost of settling claims includes the net direct expenses to be paid to complete the
settlement less any recoveries from those claims. The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure
that it has appropriate information regarding the allegations against it. Given that uncertainties
are taken into account when creating the claims provision, it is possible that the final outcome in
the estimate of the liability will differ from that estimated in the first stage.

The amounts of insurance claims are sensitive primarily to decisions and legal developments
related to them, in addition to that, insurance contracts are subject to the risk of the emergence
of new types of unobservable claims for which no provision has been made as at the date of the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group follows several mechanisms to estimate the required level of provisions, where
possible, and this provides a greater degree of understanding and enhances previous experience
in estimating provisions. Estimates derived from different methods help to predict possible
outcomes. The best selected estimation mechanisms take into account the characteristics of the
type of insurance and the evolution of the claims for each year.
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33. Insurance and financial risk management (continued)

Sources of uncertainties in estimating future claims

Insurance claims are due upon the occurrence of the insured event, as the Group is responsible
for all insured events if they occur during the term of the insurance contract, even if such loss is
discovered after the term of the insurance contract. As a result, claims are settled over an
extended period of time and a provision is made for outstanding and unreported claims.

The following table shows the percentage of loss by type of risk related to insurance premiums
for the current year:

Reinsurance risk

As with other insurance companies, and for the purpose of reducing exposure to financial losses
that may result from large insurance claims, the Group, as part of its normal business, enters
into reinsurance agreements with international reinsurance companies with high
creditworthiness.

In order to reduce its exposure to significant losses as a result of the insolvency of reinsurance
companies, the Group evaluates the financial position of the reinsurance companies that deals
with it and monitors the concentration of credit risks resulting from geographical areas and
activities or economic components similar to those companies.

Insurance Risk Sensitivity:

The following is a table showing the effect of a reasonable and possible change in the subscription
prices on the net insurance revenues, with all other affecting variables remaining constant. The
effect of the expected decrease in the subscription premium prices is equal and opposite to the
effect of the increase shown below:

Motors 10 2,847,560 2,524,805 2,286,488 2,100,301
General Accidents 10 49,106 26,350 28,493 14,565
Engineering 10 47,743 24,940 39,174 21,853
Fire 10 116,879 42,296 100,927 43,440
WMC 10 260,357 235,102 206,870 187,048
Public Liability 10 44,982 31,066 35,475 22,774
Health Insurance 10 558,253 445,627 306,699 294,459
Marine 10 59,572 17,408 40,890 18,540

3,984,452 3,347,594 3,045,016 2,702,980

2021 2020
Motor insurance 99 65
Health insurance 116 90
General insurance and others. 52 60
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33. Insurance and financial risk management (continued)

Insurance Risk Sensitivity: (continued)

Motors 10 1,916,897 1,961,817 1,295,199 1,439,801
General Accidents 10 2,251 (1,195) 1,045 179
Engineering 10 15,440 5,058 41,433 13,376
Fire 10 25,555 (1,204) 48,922 9,966
WMC 10 91,649 115,447 81,081 145,508
Public Liability 10 13,222 9,719 2,287 7,488
Health Insurance 10 288,440 350,359 265,811 265,811
Marine 10 (1,566) (2,205) 4,082 3,479

2,351,888 2.437.796 1,739,860 1,885,250

34. Capital risk management

The group's objectives in managing its capital are as follows:
• Compliance with the capital requirements of insurance companies as stated in Insurance Law
No.  20  of  2005  and  the  instructions  and  decisions  issued  by  the  Palestinian  Capital  Market
Authority / General Administration of Insurance regarding maintaining the minimum required
capital at any time during the year. The Group performs the necessary tests within its policies
and procedures to ensure continued compliance with these provisions and requirements.

• Ensuring the Group's ability to continue and thus its ability to provide shareholders with
profitable returns.

• Provide the appropriate return for shareholders and issue insurance contracts commensurate
with the level of risks related to those contracts.

35. Financial Instruments

The reinsurance contracts issued do not relieve the group of its obligations towards the insurance
policy holders, and as a result, the group remains committed to the balance of reinsured claims
in the event that the reinsurers are unable to fulfill their obligations under the reinsurance
contracts.

The Group is exposed to a margin of financial risk through its financial assets and liabilities,
reinsurance contract assets and insurance contract liabilities. The main risk that the Group is
exposed to is that the long-term investment receipts may not be sufficient to fund the obligations
arising from both insurance contracts and investments. The most important elements of this
financial  risk  are  interest  rate  risk,  equity  risk,  foreign  exchange  rate  risk,  market  price  risk,
liquidity risk and credit risk.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
Classification of financial instruments

The carrying value of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the consolidated
financial statements approximates their fair value.

December 31, 2021
  Financial

assets

  Reinsurance
  Contract Assets

 (IFRS 4 ) Non-financial assets Total
Assets USD USD USD USD
Property and Equipment - - 5,562,255 5,562,255
Right of Use Assets - - 136,513 136,513
Investment Property - - 12,188,917 12,188,917
Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income 4,736,246 - - 4,736,246
Deferred Tax Assets - - 1,069,966 1,069,966
Accounts Receivable, Net 14,768,508 - - 14,768,508
Insurance and Reinsurance Companies Receivables 295,637 - - 295,637
Reinsurance Contract Asset - 5,796,038 - 5,796,038
Financial Investments through Profit and Loss 2,464,797 - - 2,464,797
Property Inventory - - 2,595,601 2,595,601
Other Debit Balances 199,710 - - 199,710
Cheques Under Collection 21,613,172 - - 21,613,172
Deposits at Banks 3,210,259 - - 3,210,259
Cash and Cash Equivalent 3,729,661 - - 3,729,661

51,017,990 5,796,038 21,553,252 78,367,280

  Financial
liabilities

  Insurance contract
liabilities (IFRS 4) Total

USD USD USD
Liabilities
Provision for Employees End of Service Benefits 1,809,510 - 1,809,510
Accounts Payable 7,616,603 - 7,616,603
Insurance And Reinsurance Companies Payable 1,605,746 - 1,605,746
Other Credit Balances 1,861,888 - 1,861,888
  Lease Liability 141,722 - 141,722
Other Provisions 2,429,416 - 2,429,416
Insurance Contract Liability - 40,466,772 40,466,772
Postdated Cheques Payables 1,533,018 - 1,533,018
Bank Loans 3,281,854 - 3,281,854

20,279,757 40,466,772 60,746,529

December 31, 2020
  Financial

assets

  Reinsurance
  Contract Assets

 (IFRS 4 ) Non-financial assets Total
Assets USD USD USD USD
Property and Equipment - - 5,273,203 5,273,203
Right of Use Assets - - 188,498 188,498
Investment Property - - 14,169,370 14,169,370

Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income 3,164,384 - - 3,164,384

Deferred Tax Assets - - - -
Accounts Receivable, Net 14,001,039 - - 14,001,039
Insurance and Reinsurance Companies Receivables 398,038 - - 398,038
Reinsurance Contract Asset - 4,549,579 - 4,549,579
Financial Investments through Profit and Loss 954,021 - - 954,021
Property Inventory - - 1,367,980 1,367,980
Other Debit Balances 179,913 - - 179,913
Deferred Tax Assets - - 910,379 910,379
Cheques Under Collection 14,700,752 - - 14,700,752
Deposits at Banks 3,044,549 - - 3,044,549
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4,767,086 - - 4,767,086

41,209,782 4,549,579 21,909,430 67,668,791

  Financial
liabilities

  Insurance contract
liabilities (IFRS 4) Total

USD USD USD
Liabilities
Provision for Employees End of Service Benefits 1,352,511 - 1,352,511
Accounts Payable 6,627,178 - 6,627,178
Insurance And Reinsurance Companies Payable 1,203,988 - 1,203,988
Other Credit Balances 1,764,734 - 1,764,734
  Lease Liability 193,530 - 193,530
Other Provisions 2,673,726 - 2,673,726
Insurance Contract Liability - 34,362,829 34,362,829
Postdated Cheques Payables 1,112,135 - 1,112,135
Bank Loans 2,776,791 - 2,776,791

17,704,593 34,362,829 52,067,422



Al Mashreq Insurance Company and its subsidiaries
Public Shareholding Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2021

51

35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined as follows:

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets  are determined based on market  trading prices at  the
close of business on the date of the consolidated statement of financial position.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instrument.

Fair value of the financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the
fair value is observable:

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements that are derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
in  Level  1  that  are  observable  for  the  assets  or  liabilities  either  directly  (i.e.  as  prices)  or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from “valuation techniques” that include
inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobserved
inputs).

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value as at the consolidated statement
of financial position date. The following table provides information on how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined:

There were no transfers between levels during the period. There are no financial liabilities that
need to be measured at fair value. There have been no changes to level 3 fair value.

December
31,2021

December
31,2020

Fair
value

level
Valuation method

and inputs used
Intangibles

inputs

Relationship between
intangible inputs and

fair value
USD USD

Financial investment
through OCI

Investment in listed
companies

4,645,853 3,073,991 Level 1 Quoted market price
in active market

Not
Applicable

Not applicable

Investment in unlisted
companies 90,393 90,393 Level 3

Internal valuation
models based on net
asset value, net
asset value

Net assets
amount

The higher the assets
value of the investee
company the higher fair
value

Financial investment
through P&L

Investment in listed
companies

2,464,797 954,021 Level 1 Quoted market price
in active market

Not
Applicable

Not applicable

Total 7,201,043 4,118,405

Fair value as of
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Market risk

This risk represents the possibility of change in the value of financial instruments as a result of
fluctuations in market prices, or changes in foreign exchange rates or interest rates. The Group
is exposed to market risk as a result of its investment in financial instruments.

Market price risk management

These risks represent the possibility of change in the value of financial instruments as a result of
fluctuations in market prices, which are due to reasons related to a particular financial instrument,
its issuer, or the stock market in general. The Group is exposed to market risks as a result of its
investment in listed financial instruments. The Group works to reduce these risks by diversifying
investments and following market developments. In addition, the management actively follows
up on the main elements that affect stocks and market movement, including analysis of the
financial and operational performance of the investees.

Foreign exchange risk management

There is no material risk to the group related to the change in currency exchange rates, as most
of  the company's  revenues,  expenses and allocations and a large part  of  its  assets  are in  the
shekel currency, which represents the company's base currency.

Management believes that the possibility of material losses arising from fluctuations in currency
exchange rates is minimal.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility of changes in interest rates affecting the Group's
financing income and cost. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on financial investments in
bonds, term deposits and bank borrowings, each of which is subject to fixed and floating interest.

The Group generally attempts to mitigate interest rate risk by closely monitoring market interest
rates and investing in those financial assets whose risks are expected to be minimal.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the inability of the group's other debtors to pay their contractual obligations, which
results in a financial loss for the group. The Group is specifically exposed to credit risk as follows:

• Reinsurers' share of insurance obligations.
• Amounts due from reinsurers for claims paid by the Group.
• Amounts due from policyholders.
• Amounts due from agents.

The Group adopts a policy based on concluding contractual agreements with high net worth
parties in order to mitigate the loss that may result from the inability to pay these obligations.

The group's financial assets, which may expose the group to credit concentration risk, mainly
consist of cash and deposits with banks, real estate investments, trading financial assets and
insurance receivables.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

• The Group's accounts with banks are deposited with financial institutions with high credit
ratings.

• Investments in trading securities are shown at the market value, and the difference
between the book value and the market value is shown in the calculation of the valuation
profits of trading financial investments in the consolidated income statement.

• Accounts receivable are stated net of provision for expected credit losses.
• Accounts receivable consists of a large number of customers and agents distributed over

various sectors and geographical regions, and the credit portfolio is evaluated
periodically based on the financial position of insurance receivables.

• There is no significant concentration of credit risk in the group within or outside the
insurance sector in which the group operates.

• The group exercises all its insurance activities inside the Palestinian territories.

Liquidity risk

The ultimate responsibility for the management of liquidity risk rests with the Board of Directors
which  has  established  an  appropriate  framework  for  liquidity  risk  management,  in  order  to
manage matters relating to the short, medium and long term funding of the Group, as well as
the requirements of liquidity management. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves through continuous monitoring of projected and actual cash flows and
comparing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The contractual maturity of
financial instruments is determined based on the remaining period to the maturity of the financial
instrument from the date of the consolidated financial statements. The group's management
monitors the maturity of financial instruments in order to ensure that the necessary liquidity is
available in the group. The maturity of the financial assets and financial liabilities as at the date
of the consolidated financial statements is as follows, based on contractual payment
arrangements.

As of December 31, 2021
  Subject to

liquidity risk
  Within one

year
  More than one

year
  Without due

date Total
USD USD USD USD

Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income - - 4,736,246 4,736,246
Accounts Receivable, Net 14,768,508 - - 14,768,508
Insurance and Reinsurance Companies Receivables 295,637 - - 295,637
Financial Investments through Profit and Loss - - 2,464,797 2,464,797
Other Debit Balances 199,710 - - 199,710
Cheques Under Collection 17,087,751 4,525,421 - 21,613,172
Deposits at Banks 2,960,259 250,000 - 3,210,259
Cash and Cash Equivalent 3,729,661 - - 3,729,661
Total financial assets 39,041,526 4,775,421 7,201,043 51,017,990

Provision for Employees End of Service Benefits - - 1,809,510 1,809,510
Accounts Payable 7,616,603 - - 7,616,603
Insurance And Reinsurance Companies Payable 1,605,746 - - 1,605,746
Other Credit Balances 1,861,888 - - 1,861,888
Other Provisions 2,429,416 - - 2,429,416
Insurance Contract Liability 40,466,772 - - 40,466,772
Postdated Cheques Payables 1,533,018 - - 1,533,018
Bank Loans 3,281,854 - - 3,281,854
Lease Liability 141,722 - - 141,722
Total financial liabilities 58,937,019 - 1,809,510 60,746,529
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As of December 31, 2020

Risks of changing investment prices

These risks represent the possibility of change in the value of financial instruments as a result of
fluctuations in market prices, which are due to reasons related to a particular financial instrument,
its issuer, or the stock market in general. The Group is exposed to market risks as a result of its
investment in financial instruments. The Group works to reduce these risks by diversifying
investments and following market developments. In addition, the management actively follows
up on the main elements that affect stocks and market movement, including analysis of the
financial and operational performance of the investees.

Sensitivity analysis

As on the date of the consolidated financial statements, if the investment price changes by 10%,
up or down, as assumed below, with all other variables remaining constant, the effect on the
group's profits and equity is increased or decreased by USD 720,104.

Assumptions and sensitivity testing methods:

• The sensitivity analysis has been prepared based on investment prices as at the date of
the consolidated financial statements.

• As on the date of the consolidated financial statements, if the investment prices
increased  or  decreased  by  10%  more  than  the  market  value  uniformly  for  all
investments, in light of the stability of all other variables, the impact of this on the
group's profits or losses as well as on equity was explained above.

• 10% was used as a change in investment prices to give a realistic assessment, as that
change is possible.

  Subject to
liquidity risk
  Within one

year
  More than one

year
  Without due

date Total
USD USD USD USD

Financial Investments through Other Comprehensive Income - - 3,164,384 3,164,384
Accounts Receivable, Net 14,001,039 - - 14,001,039
Insurance and Reinsurance Companies Receivables 398,038 - - 398,038
Financial Investments through Profit and Loss - - 954,021 954,021
Other Debit Balances 179,913 - - 179,913
Cheques Under Collection 12,157,776 2,542,976 - 14,700,752
Deposits at Banks 2,794,549 250,000 - 3,044,549
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4,767,086 - - 4,767,086
Total financial assets 34,298,401 2,792,976 4,118,405 41,209,782

Provision for Employees End of Service Benefits - - 1,352,511 1,352,511
Accounts Payable 6,627,178 - - 6,627,178
Insurance And Reinsurance Companies Payable 1,203,988 - - 1,203,988
Other Credit Balances 1,764,734 - - 1,764,734
Other Provisions 2,673,726 - - 2,673,726
Insurance Contract Liability 34,362,829 - - 34,362,829
Postdated Cheques Payables 1,112,135 - - 1,112,135
Bank Loans 2,776,791 - - 2,776,791
Lease Liability 193,530 - - 193,530
Total financial liabilities 50,714,911 - 1,352,511 52,067,422
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36. Contingent Liabilities

The balance of the contingent liabilities in the consolidated financial statements amounted to USD
288,890 as of December 31, 2021 and represent bank guarantees issued in the name of others
(an amount of USD 160,701 as of December 31, 2020).

37. COVID 19 Impact on the Group
The global outbreak of novel coronavirus (COVID 19) during early 2020 is causing disruptions in
normal lives and businesses in many ways. The spread of the virus in Palestine led to many
closures in the markets and movement restrictions because of the preventive measures taken by
the government to limit the spread.
The Group’s management took into consideration the exceptional circumstances that could have
material impact on the Group's operations and the risks of exposure to the Group. As a result,
the management concluded that the main effects on the Group's revenue and liquidity could arise
from the following:

Ability to recover the receivables.
Shortage of staff.
Decrease in total insurance premiums due to non-renewal of insurance policies; and
Decrease in the market value of investments held by the Group.

Stating the above, the management come to an end that there is no significant impact on the
Group’s revenues as at the date of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity management/Group continuity
 The management has taken practical measures to ensure the availability of sufficient liquidity for
the Group to fulfill its obligations, It has also developed a plan to work remotely to ensure the
continuity of services to its customers, The management monitors the impact of the virus
outbreak periodically to make sure that there is no material impact at operations especially with
regard to the issuance of documents and the processing of claims, in which the Group is
responding appropriately in this regard.

Collection of debit insurance premiums
The spread of the Corona virus led to a significant increase in credit risk because of the operational
disruptions. The Group management has improved the collection and follow-up procedures with
customers to ensure the best possible collection results. Based on the management’s assessment,
the Group has not identified a material impact on the recoverability of the receivable balances as
of and for the period ended December 31, 2021.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
The spread of the Corona virus led to great turmoil and price volatility in global financial markets.
The group monitors whether the fair values of financial assets represent the price that will be
achieved for transactions in the market under the current circumstances, bearing in mind that
most of the group’s financial investments are investments in securities listed in the local market
where there was no significant fluctuation in prices during the period.
Based on management’s assessment, the Group has not determined a material impact on the fair
values of the financial instruments for the period ended December 31, 2021 other than the change
that was reflected in the interim consolidated financial information.

Fair value measurement of property investments
Based on the management’s assessment, there are no indications of a material decline in fair
values  of  real  estate  in  local  market  in  light  of  the  spread  of  the  Corona  virus,  even  with  a
decrease in buyout. Consequently, the Group's management did not determine any material
impact on the fair value of investments in real estate for the period ending December 31, 2021.

The group will monitor the market to ensure that the prices used by the group accurately
represent fair value.


